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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of PS Toll Road Private Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PS Toll Road Private Limited (“the
Company”}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "Financial
Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS”} and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2024, its losses including Other Comprehensive Income, its Cash Flows and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA") specified under
Section 143(10} of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial
statements.

information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's report and shareholder’s
information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respousibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge cbtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we required to
report that fact. The other information is likely to be provided to us after the date of our report.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134{5) of the
Act, with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
of the Financial Position, Financial Performance including Other Comprehensive Income, Cash
Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of the appropriate
accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Stateinents

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that inciudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate te provide & basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve cellusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,
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procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adeqguate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

»  [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant déubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based en the audil evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregale, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeabie user of
the Ind AS Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in:

i.  planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
{i. to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS Financia) Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
refevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the "Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;
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¢) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,

the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounti ng standards
specified under section 133 of the Act:

] On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the
Act;

f}  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company with reference to these financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B,

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, we report that no
remuneration has been paid by the company to its directors during the year. Hence the
requirement of the company for compliance under this section is not applicable.

h} With respect to the other matters to be inciuded in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rules 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and as represented by the management:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation as at March 31,
2024 on its financial position in its Financial Statement. - Refer Note No. 29 of
the accompanying financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses,

iil. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in Note No. 38 to the financial statement no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share
premiwm or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or
the jike on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

{b} Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in Note No. 38 to the financial statement no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
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whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries

{c) Based on our audit procedure conducted that are considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that
cause us to believe that the representation given by the management under
paragraph (2) {h} (iv) (a) & (b) contain any material misstatement,

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi, Based on our examination which included test check, the company has used
an accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts which has a
feature of maintaining audit trail facility, which has been operating thereafter.
Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any cases
where the audit trail maintained has been tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 is applicable
from Aprii 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the said Rule on
preservation of audit trail as per the slalutory requirements for record
retention is not applicable for the financial year 2023-24,

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302014E

Narendra Khandal

Partner

Membership No.: 065025
UDIN : 24065025BKA0FT9327

Place : Mumbai
Date :May 10,2024
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS OF PS TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED,

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of
audit, we state that:

i) (a) (A} The company does not carry an property, plant and equipment in its financial
statements and hence the reporting requirements under this sub-clause is not
applicable.

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its
intangible assets.

{b) In view of there being no property, plant and equipment, the reporting
requirements under this sub-clause is not applicable,

(c)  There are no immovable properties disclosed in the accompanying financial
statements and hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (c) of clause
(i) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

(d)  As explained to us, the company has not revalued any of its Intangible assets
during the year.

{e}  According to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the company, we report that no proceedings
have been initiated during the year or are pending against the company as at
March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition} Act, 1988 (45 of 1988} and rules made thereunder.

it)  {a) Inouropinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company does not carry any inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements under
sub-clause {a} of clause {ii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

(b)  The company has not been sanctioned any working capital Jimits from banks or
financial institutions and hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (b}
of clause (i) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable,

iif} The company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
reporting requirement of clause 3(iii}{(a), (b).(c).{d).(e} & (f} of the Order are not
applicable.

iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not advanced any loans to directors / to a company in which the Director is
interested to which the provisions of section 185 of the Act apply. Further, based on the
information and explanations given to us, being an infrastructure company, the
provisions of section 186 of the Act to the extent of loans, guarantees and securities
granted are not applicable to the company. Hence, the reporting requirements under
clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit. Consequently, the
directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the
Actand the rules framed thereunder are not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly reviewed
such records and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed records have been
made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the
records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(a}  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and

based on our examination of the books of the company, the company is generally
regular in depositing undisputed applicable statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, and any
other material statutory dues to the appropriate authorities, which are deposited
with delay.
There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, and any other material
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2624 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b}  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory
dues referred to in clause {a) above which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute except for the following cases:

Name of the | Nature of | Period  for | Forum where | Amount
statute Dues which the | dispute is | involved
amount pending (in Rs.)
related
Finance Act, | Service Tax October 2010 | Bombay High | 11,71,83,852
1994 to September | Court
2015
income Tax | Income Tax AY 2014-15 Commissioner | 17,53,80,730
Act, 1961 of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Stamp  Duty | Stamp duty Concession inspector 3,63,08,900
Act Agreement General of
executed in | Stamps and
2010 Chief
Controlling
Revenue
Authority,
Pune

According to the information and explanations and representation given to us, there
are no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961,

{a} (i) The Company has delayed in payment of interest to the banks during the
year, which were paid on or before the Balance Sheet date. Further, in
respect of the continuing default as at March 31, 2023 the continuing default
of interest and principal have been repaid during the year in the month of
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May 2023. The interest and repayment for the year under audit have been
generally paid in time.

(b)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority. {refer Note
no, 10 of the accompanying financial statement)

{c]  Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no fresh term loans have been taken during the year.

(d)  Onan overall examination of the financial statements of the company, in our
opinion funds raised on short term basis aggregating to Rs, 5,892 Million
have been prima-facie being used for long term purposes as at the end of the
year.

(e)  The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate and
hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause {e) of clause (ix) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

{f) ' The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate and
hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (f) of clause (ix) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

(x} {a)  The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) and hence clause (x){(a) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{b)  During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of
shares or fully or partly or optionally convertible debentures and Hence,
reporting under clause (x}(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(xi) (a)  Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the
true and fair view of the financial statements and as per information and
explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(b)  During the year, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor/Secretarial auditor or by
us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies {Audit and
Auditors} Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

{c}  As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

{xii) In our opinion, Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
{xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{xdii} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions with related parties are in compiiance with section 188 and section
177 of the Act and their details have been disciosed in the financial statements etc,
as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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(xiv) {a)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size
and nature of its business.

{b)  We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till
date, for the period under audit for the purpose of planning our audit
procedures.

(xv) According to the information and explanations provided by the management, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons
connected with him as referred to in Section 192 of the Act.

[xvi) (a}  To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

{b)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided
to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, the Company has not
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during
the year as per the Reserve bank of India Act 1934.

{c) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided
to us, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

(d}  Asrepresented by the management, the group does not have more than one
core investment company {CIC) as part of the group as per the definition of
group contained in Core Investment Companies (Reserved Bank) Directions,
2016,

{xvii) In our epinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us,
Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year or in the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii} There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Therefore,
provisions of clause (xviii) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.
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(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
audit procedures, The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR} contribution under
section 135 of the Actis not applicable to the Company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause (xx) (a) & (b} of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 302014E

arendra Khandal
Partner
Membership No.: 065025
UDIN ; 24065025BKA0FT9327

Place :Mumbai
Tlate :May 10, 2024
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ANNEXURE “B"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF PS TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
financial statement of PS Toll Road Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in

conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") issited by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india (“{CAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an apinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by ICAl and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the
internal financial controls system over f{inancial reporting with reference to these financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internat control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference To These
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that {1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; {2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
macde only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the cempany ;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the Financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With
Reference To These Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial contro} over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the criteria for interna) financial control over financial
reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
isswted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 302014

Narendra Khandal

Partner

Membership No.: 065025
UDIN : 24065025BKA0FT9327

Place :Mumbai
Date :May 10,2024




P83 Toil Road Private Limited
CIN : U45203MHZDI0PTC 198872
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

¥ Rdiltions
. As at As at
Particulars Nate Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
{(a) Cuncession Intangible assets 4 28,667.41 31,387.28
{b) Intangible assets under development 4 1,144.90C 761.18
{c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 18.45 34.18
Total Non-Current Assets 29,830.76 32,192.64
Current assets
{a} Financial Assetls
{i) Cash and cash equivalents 5 577.88 128 02
(i} Other financial asset G ar9.22 94.95
{ix} Other current assets ¥ 86.96 11715
Totat Current Assets 1,044.06 340.12
Total Assets 30,874.82 32 53276
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a} Equity share capital 8 0.1 011
{b} Subordinated debt (in nature of Equity) 9a 10,785.11 10,785.11
{c} Other equity ab {6,602.07) (4,037 .96)
Total Equity 4,183.15 6,747.26
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabitities
{a) Financial Liabilities
{i) Borrowings 10a 5,924.79 6,628.86
{it) Other financial liabilities 12b 41,557.27 11,742.07
(b} Provisions 13b 243.38 187.48
Totai Non-Current Liabilities 17.725.44 18,558 .41
Current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 10b 2,277.24 1,586.90
{il) Trade payables
{A) 1otal outstanding dues of Micro & Small
Enterprises - -
(B} Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than Micro & Small Enterprises 11 303.24 37741
{iiiy Other financiaf liabilities 12a 6,366.81 5,247.28
{b) Other current fiabilities 14 18.91 576
{c) Provisions 13a 0.063 0.04
Totat Current Liabilities 8,966.23 7.227.08
Tetal Equity and Liakilities 30,874.82 32,532.76

As per our attached report of even dale
For MKPS & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 302014E

rendra Khandal
artner

Membership Number | 085025

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 10, 2024

Fer and en behalf of the Board

1A supimal vas Frasfant sumar
Birector Director
DIN: 08236805 DIN: 09586595

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 10, 2024




PS ToH Road Private Limited
CIN : U45203MH2010PTC199879
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2824

Z Millions
. Year ended Year ended

Particulars Note Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Revenue from Operations 15 4,744.22 £,130.32
Other Income 16 18.08 26.06
Total Income 4,762.30 5,156.38
Expenses

Toll Operation and Mainfainence expenses 17 1,133.69 850.25

Construction cost 398.92 1,030.79

Employee benefits expense 18 24.65 46,91

Finance costs 19 2,912.76 2,859.66

Amortization expense 4 2,729.87 2.604.86

Other expenses 20 125.80 120.27
Total expenses 7,325.69 751274
Loss before tax {2,563.39) (2,356.36)
Tax expense

income tax for earlier years - 3.91

Deferred tax charge/(credit) - -
Loss after tax {2,563.39) (2,360.27)

Other Comprehensive Income
- Items that will not be reclassified to profit/loss

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans ; Gains / (Loss) (0.72) 4.26
- Income tax relating 1o above - -

Other Comprehensive Income/{L.oss) {0.72) 4.26
Total Comprehensive Income /{Loss) {2,564.11) (2,356.01)

Earnings/(loss) per equity share (Face value of Rs, 10 per share)
Basic & Diluted 28 (2,39,033.33) {2,20,092.25)

As per our attached report of even date.

For MKPS & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302014E

" Nafendra Khandal Trina Subimal Das Prashant Kumar
artner Director Director
Membership Number : 085025 DIN: 08236805 DIN; 09586595
Place: Mumbai Place; Mumbai

Date: May 10, 2024 Date: May 10, 2024




PS5 Toll Road Private Limited
Cash flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024
7 Millions
Particulars Year endod Year ended
articuia Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
t.oss hefore tax {2,563.38) {2,366.36)
Adfustments for:
Amortizalion expenses 2,724.87 2,604.86
Interest income {2.03} {1.00}
Expected Credit Loss 2.581 2.07
Finance Cost 291376 2,855,566
Excess provision wrilten back - (22.13)
MMR Provision 489.81 210.87
Provision for Graluity and Leave encashment 0.65 117
3,570.08 3,29%.14
Cash Generated from Operations before working capital changes
Adjustments for:
{Increase)decrease in financial assels (284.27) 80.81
{Increase)/decrease in olher current assels 27.69 73.53
increasef{decrease) in lrade payables {73.86) {32.28)
Incrzasef{decrease) in other financial liabililies {6.92) {5.83)
Increasef{decrease)} in provisions (435.18) {20.85)
Increasef{decrease) in other current liabifities 13.45 {9.10}
(759.39) 86.17
Cash generated from operations 2,810.69 3,3856.31
Taxes (paid) net of refunds 15.73 {25.58}
Net cash generated from operating activities - A} 2826.42 3,360.73
B, CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACYIVITIES:
Purchase of inlangible assets (including intangible assest under
developmenl, captial advance, capital creditors) (1,031.38) {2,511.85)
interest received 2.G3 1.00
Net cash {used in} / gencrated from investing activities - {B} {1,029.35) {2,510.86)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from short tenm borrowings 720.00 436.00
Repayment of long term borrowings {753.18} {228.31)
Interest paid {1,314.03} (1,067.17)
Net cash used in financing activities - [C} {1,347.21} {B59.48)
Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - [A+B+C] 449,86 (10.681)
Add: Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the period 128.02 138.63
Casiy and cash eguivalents at the end of the period 577.88 128.02
Components of Cash and cash eguivalents
Bafances wilh banks - in Current accounts §77.40 127 .84
Cash on hand 0.48 .18
Total Cash and cash equivalents 577.88 126.02
Note:
i) The above Slalement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method” as set out in Ind AS 7, "Stalemenl
ii} Refer Mote 36 - Disclosure pursuant to para 44 A to 44 £ of Ind AS 7 -Cash fiow Statements
i} The balance lying in escrow f current account with banks of Rs. 577.40 million (Rs. 127.84 million) are held as
security againsl borrowings.
As per our altached report of even date.
For MKPS & Associates For and on behalf of the Board

Chantered Accountanis
Firm Registration No. 302014E

.
/N’arendra Khandal Trina Subimal Das  Prashant Kumar
Partner Director Director 7
Membership Number : 065025 DIN: 08236805 DIN: 09586595 ;’rf

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 10, 2024

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 10, 2024



P8 Toli Road Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

AL EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Z Millions
Balance at the Changes in equity | Balance at the end
Particufars beginning of the | share capital during of the year
year the yvear
For the year ended 31st March, 2023 0.11 - 0.1
For the year ended 31st March, 2024 0.11 - 0.1
B. SUB-ORDINATED DEBT (in Nature of equity)
# Millions
Balance at the Changes during the | Balance at the end
Particulars beginning of the year of the year
year
For the year ended 31st March, 2023 10,785.11 - 10,785.11
For the year ended 31st March, 2024 10,785.11 - 10,785.11
C. OTHER EQUATY
¥ Millions
Equity Component
Particulars gf corrfpoud Reserves and Total
financial Surplus
instruments
Batance at Aprit 01, 2022 105.10 (1,787.05) (1.681.95)
Loss for the year (2,380.27) (2,380.27)
Cther comprehensive income for the year 4.26 4.28
Total comprehensive income for the year - (2,356.01) (2,356.01)
Balance at 31st March, 2023 105.10 (4,143.06} {(4,037.96)
Balance at April 01, 2023 105.10 (4,143.06) (4,037.986)
Loss for the year (2,563.39) (2,563.39)
Other comprehensive income for the period {0.72) {0.72)
Total comprehensive income for the period - (2,564.11} {2,564.11)
Balance at 31st March, 2024 105.10 {6,707.17) {6,602.07)

As per our report of even date attached

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 3020148

Ndrendra Khandal
artner
Membership Number : 065025

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 10, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board

Prashant Kumar
Director
DiN: 09586595

Trina Subimal Das
Director
DIN: 08236805

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 10, 2024




PS Toli Road Private Limited
CIN : U45203MH2010PTC 199879

Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024
Note 1: Corporate information

PS5 Toll Road Private Limited was awarded on Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT)
basis, augmentation of the existing road from km 725.00 to km 865.35 (approximately 140.25 km) on the
Pune-Satara section of National Highway No.4 in the state of Maharashira and operation and maintenance
of the existing 4 lanes and additional 2 lanes as per the Concession Agreement dated March 10, 2010 of
the National Highways Authority of india. The Concession Agreement is for a year of 24 years from
October 01, 2010, being the appointed Date stated in clause 1.1 of the said agreement. The company is a
subsidiary of Reliance infrastructure Limited. Toll Colleclion Slarted from October 1,2010.

The Company is subsidiary of Reliance Infrastructure Limited. At the end of the Concession period, the
entire facility will be transferred to NHAL.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 10, 2024
Pursuant to the provisions of section 130 of the Act the Central Government, income tax authorities and
other statutory regufatory body and section 131 of the Act the board of directors of the Company have
powers to amend / re-open the financial statements approved by the board / adopted by the members of
the Company,

The Company is a private limited company incorporated and domiciled in {ndia. The registered office of the
Company is located at Reliance Cenfre, 19, Walchand Hirachand Marg, Baliard Estate, Mumbai 400 001,

Note 2: Basis of preparation

These Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevani provisions of the Act. These Financial Statements have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and disclosures mandated by Schedule
HI of the Act, applicable ind AS, other applicable pronouncemenis and reguiations.

These Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for cerlain assets and
liabilittes which have been measured at fair value,

These Financial Statements are presented in € Millions, except where otherwise indicated.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and
disclosures mandated by Schedule il to the Act, applicable ind AS, other applicable pronouncements and
regulations.

Note 3: Summary of Material accounting policies
3.1 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on cwrent/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

*  Expected to be realised or intended to he sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

= Expected fo be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

= Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a Hability for at least
twelve months after the reporting pericd

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
= His expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
*  His due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
= There is no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and lizbilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.




PS Toll Road Private Limited
CiN : U45203MH2010PTC199879
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024
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The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Functionat and presentation currency

Hems included in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates ( 'the functionat currency’). The functional statements

are presented in Indian Rupees {7}, which the company’s functional and presentation currency.

Fair value measurement

Falr value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measwement date. The fair value measurement is based
oh the presumption that the transaclion to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

» Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
» Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or lizbility

The principal or the most advantagecus market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liabifity is measured using the assumplions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best inferest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in ils highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant thal would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Compaiy uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant cbservable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inpuis.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are
calegorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for idenlical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indireclly observable

Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the Tair value measurement as a whoig)
at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and non —
recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unguoted financial assets measured
at fair value.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilifies
which are reguired fo be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation o contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpese of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the tevel of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes,

Disclosures for valualion methods, significant estimates and assumptions of Financial--instruments
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3.4

(including those carried af amortised cost (note 21) and Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement
hierarchy (note 22).

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized up on transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those services.

Toll revenue
The income from tolt revenue from operations of the facility is accounted on accrual basis.
Contract revenue {construction contracts)

Effective from April 1, 2018, the Company adopied Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
using the cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to contracts that were not comptleted as at April 1,
2018. in accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition method, the comparatives have not been
retrospectively adjusied. There was no impact on adoption of Ind AS 115 in the financial statements.

Cantracts revenue is recognised over time by measuring progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation at the reporting date, measured based on the proportion of contract costs incurred
for work performed to date relative to the estimated total contract costs, using the input method. Contract
costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred except when the costs are the
costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will be used in satisfying performance abligation in
future.

Contract cost includes cosls that refate directly to the specific contract and allocated costs that are
attributable to the construction of the lofl roads. Cost that cannot be atlributed to the contract activity such
as general administration costs are expensed as incurred and classified as other operating expenses.

The Company accounts for a contract modification (change in the scope or price (or both)) when that is
approved by the parties to the contract.

Where the outcome of a performance obligation cannot be reascnably measured, confract revenue is
recognised to the extent of costs incurred in satisfying the performance obligation that is expected to be
recovered.

When it becomes probable that tolal contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the Company
recognizes expected losses from contracls as an expense immediately.

Others

Interest income on financial assets measured at amorlized cost is recognised using the effective inlerest
rate method.

Dividends are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive paymert is
asldbiished.

Accounting of intangible assets under service concession arrangement

The Company has Toll Road Conceesion rights where it Builds, Oporates and Transfers (ROT)
infrastructure used to provide public service for a specified period of time. These arrangements may
include Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire useful life.

Thase arrangements are accounted for basad on the nature of the consideration. The infungible asset
modet is used to the extent thal the Company receives a right (a license) to charge users of the public
service. The financial asset model is used when the Company has an unconditional contractual right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services.
When the unconditional right to receive cash covers only part of the service, the two models are combined
o account separately for each component. if the Company performs more than one servige (ie.,
construction of upgrade services and operation services) under a single contract or arrangement,
consideration received or receivable is allocated by reference to the relative fair values of the services
delivered, when the amounts are separately identifiable.

The intangible assets is measured at the fair value of consideration transferred to acquire asset. which is
the fair value of consideration received or receivable for the construction services delivered:
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Intangible assets mode!

Intangible assets arising out of service concession arrangements are accounted for as intangible assets
where the Company has a contractual right to charge users of service when the projects are completed.
Apart from above per the service concession agreement the Company is obligated to pay the amount of
premium to National Highways Authority of India (NHAI). This premium obligation if any is treated as
Imangible asset as it is paid towards getting the right to earn revenue by constructing and operating the
roads during lhe concession period.

Hence, the total premium payable to the Grantor as per the Service Concession Agreement is also
recognized as an ‘Intangible Assets’ and the corresponding obligation for committed premium is
recognized as premium obligation.

The intangible assels is measured at the fair value of consideration transferred to acquire asset, which is
the fair value of consideration received or receivable for the construction services delivered.

Amortization of concession intangible assets

The intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on time proportion basis on
Straight Line methed over the period of the concession. Refer note 25 for description and significant terms
of the concession agreements.

Taxes
Current Tax

Current income tax assels and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation aulhorities. The {ax rates and 1ax laws used to compute the amount are those thal are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company aperates and
generates laxable icome. Current income fax relating fo items recognized cutside the Statement of Profit
and Loss is recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates posifions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situalions in which applicable tax reguiations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT') under the provisions of Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax
in the statement of profit and loss. MAT paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment to future income fax liabifity, is considered as an asset if there is a
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in
the balance sheet when it is probable thal the future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the
Company.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

ayhas a legally enforceabie right to set off the recagnised amounts; and
byintends either to settle on a net basis, or {0 realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial repoding purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognized for all taxable temporary differences
Deferred lax assels are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax

losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow atl or-parl.of the deferred
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3.8

3.9

tax asset to be uliized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future laxable profits will aliow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that ars expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have heen
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Stalement of Profit and Loss is recognized outside
the Statement of Profit and toss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax ilems
are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly
in ecuity.

Deferred tax assels and deferred tax liabilities are offsel if a legally enforceable right exists fo set off
current fax assets against current tax labilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable eniity and
the same taxation authority.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cosis directly alfributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessalily takes a substantiat period of time 1o get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. Alf other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they ocour.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment o the
borrowing costs.

l.eases

Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense in the income slalement on a slraight
line basis over the lease term,

Contingent liabilities and contingent Assets

A contingent liability is a possible obfigation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-cccurrence of one or more unceriain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required {0 settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The contingent
lizbility is not recognised in the books of accounts but its existence is disciosed in the Financial
Statements. A Contingent asset is not recognized in financial statements, however, the same are disclosed
where an inflow of economic benefit is probabie.

3.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

3.1

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amourd Ly which (e
assel’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
assel's fair vatue less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a resuit of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying ecenomic benefils will be required to
setle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision fo be reimbursed the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
thal refiects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the fiability. When discounting is'lised, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.
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3.12 Employee benefits
(i) Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and safaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settied wholly
within 12 months afler the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respecl of employees’ services up {o the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected 1o be paid when the liabililies are setlled. The labilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

{ii} Leave obligations
The Company provides sick leave and privilege feave to its emplovees.

Priviiege and sick ieave obligation is provided based on actuarial valuation which takes into account
the estimated portion of leave that will be en-cashed, availed and the portion that will lapse. The
portion that is expected to be en-cashed Is provided for based on the basic salary of the employee
and for the portion that is expected to be availed, the valuations are based on the employees’ total
compensation. The liabifty for earned leave is also classified as current where it is expected {o be
availed/ en-cashed during the next 12 months. The remaining portion is classified as non-current. The
amounts of current and non-current fiability are based on actuarial estimates.

(iii) Post - employment obligations

The Company operates various post-employment schemes, including
{a) defined benefit plans such as gratuily
{b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity Cbligations

The liability or assel recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obfigation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annuaily by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation,

The net interest cost is calculaled by applying the discouni rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense
in the stalement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gains and lesses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumplions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equily and in the
balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curlgiiments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined Contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations, The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined confribution plans and the contributions are
recognized as employee benefit expense when lhey are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the fulure payments is available.

3.13 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shor-lerm

deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject-toran_insignificant risk of
changes in value,
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For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shon-term
deposits, as defined above, net of cutstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of
the Company's cash management.

3.14 Financial instruments

A financial insfrument is any contract that gives rise fo a financial asset of one entity and a financial Habitity
or equity instrument of another entity,

Financial assets
tnitial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initialiy at fair value, in the case of financial assels not recorded at fair
value through Statement of Profit and Loss, net of directly atiributable transaction cost to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
ectablished by regulation or convention in the market placn {ragnlar way tradas) are resngrised on the
trade date, Le., the date that the Company comimits 1o purchase or selt the asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assels are classified in following categories;
= atamortised cost

= at fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL)

v at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial Assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured af the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within & business model whose objeclive is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principat and interest (SPPI} on the principat amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant fo the Company. All the Loans and olher receivables under financial
assets {except Investments) are nen-derivative financial assets with fixed or delerminable payments that
are not quoted in an aclive markel.

After initial measurement such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies 1o loans and other
receivables,

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Statement of Profit and Loss/Other Comprehensive Income

All investmenis in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Company has investment in mutual
funds which are held for frading, are classified as at FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an
instrument by instrument basis, The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable,

i the Company decides to classify an instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other Comprehensive income. There is ne recycling
of the amounts from Other Comprehensive Income {OCI) to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale
af investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

A financial assel (vr, where applicable, a parl of a financial assel or part of the Company's similar financial
assets}) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

The rights o receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
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to pay the received cash flows in full withoul material delay fo a third pary under a 'pass-through'
arrangement; and eflher (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
assel, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
assel, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights {o receive cash flows from an asset or has entered info a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and {o what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither ransferred nor relained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor ransferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred assel to the
extent of the Company's continuing involvement. in that case, the Company also recognizes an associated
liability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried al amortised cost and FVOUGH, The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Company has three types of financial assets subject to Ind AS 109’s expected credit loss modet:
»  Loans receivables measured at amortised cost

*  Refentions recaivable, grant receivahle from NHAI
=  Loans given to employees

The impairment methedology for each class of financial assels stated above is as follows:

Loans receivables measured at amortised cost: Loans receivables at amortised cost are generally short
term in nature considered to be low risk, and thus the impairment provision is determined as 12 months
expected cradit iosses,

l.oans given o employees: For loans given to employees outstanding as on the reporting dates, the has
delermined refiably that assessing the probability of default at the initiai recognition of each and every loan
or receivable would resull in undue cost and effort. As permitted by Ind AS 109, the credit provision will be
determined based on whether credit risk is low only at each reporting date, until the loan is derecognized.
Using the impairment methodology the Company has assessed that no loan loss allowance needs to be
recorded in the books of accounts.

Expected credit loss (ECL) impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is
recognized as income/ expense inn the Statement of Profi{ and Loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under
the head 'other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is
described below;

Financial assets measured as at amortized cost and ofher confractual revenue receivables - ECL is
presented as an aliowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the
Company does nof reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabiiities at fair value through Statement
of Profit and Loss, loans and borrowings, frade payables or other payables.

Alf financial fiabilities are recognized initially at fair value.

The Company's financial Habilities include frade and other payables, foans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and other payables.

Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities at amortized cost: After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently

measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are.an.integral part of
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3.15

3.16

the EIR. The £IR amortization is included in finance costs in the Statement of Profif and Loss.

Loans and horrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. Afier initial recognition, interest-bearing ioans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. However, the Company
has borrowings at floating rales. The impact of restatement of effective interest rate, year on year due to
reset of interest rate, is not material. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
when the liabilities are derecognized as weil as through the transaction cost amortization process.

Trade Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services thal have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year of less (o it the nonmal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabiities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Retention money payable

This is the category most relevant fo the Company. Retention moneys are measured al Fair value initially.
Subsequently, they are measured al amortised cost using the EiR (Effective interest rate) method. Gains
and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derscognized as well as
through the EIR amortization process.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled of
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enferceable fegal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
setfle on a net basis, fo realize 1he assets and setile the liabilities simuitaneously.

Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker {CODM). Chief operating decision maker's function is to allocate the resources
of the entity and access the performance of the operating segment of the entity.

The Board assesses the financial performance and position of the Company and makes strategic
decisions. It is identified as being the chief operating decision maker for the company.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on hisloricat experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
befieved to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions conceming the fulure. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related aclual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are
disclosed helow.
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(i} Applicabitity of service concession arrangement accounting to toll roads concessionaire

arrangements

The Company has determined that Appendix B of ind AS 115 ‘Service concession arrangements' is
applicable to the Company which provides on accounting by the operators for pubiic-to-private service
concession arrangements. The Company has enlered into concession arrangement with NHAI as per
which the Company would parlicipate in the Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis
the toll roads infrastructure. Afler the end of the concession arrangement, the Company has fo transfer the
infrastructure t.e. toll roads constructed to National Highway Authorities of india (NHAI).

Accordingly the Company has recognized the intangible assets recognized as per the accounting policy
mentioned in Note no 3.5 'Accounting of intangibie assets under service concessionaire arrangement’.

(ii) Income faxes

The Company has recognized deferred lax assets relating fo carried forward tax losses 1o the extent there
are sufficient taxable temporary differences relating to the same taxation authority against which the
unused tax losses can be ulilized. However, the utilization of tax fosses also depends on the ability of the
Company to satisly certain tests at the {ime the losses are recouped. Management has forecasted future
faxable profits and has therefore recognized deferred tax assets in relation to tax losses.

(iii}) Amortization of concession intangible assets

317

The Intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on time proportion basis on
Straight Line method over the period of the concession.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from lime to time. For the year ended
March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards
applicable to the Company.
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Note 4 - Concession Intangible assets (including intangible assets under development)

T Millions

Particuiars Toll Cotiection rights NHAI Fremium Intangible assets

under development
Year ended March 2023
Opening gross cartying amount 19,727 41 11.012.598 13.376.71
Additions 13,683.30 - 1,067.76
Transfers - {13,683.30)
Disposals
Closing gross carrying amounl 33,410.71 11,012.98 781.18
Accumutated amortisation and impairment
Opening accumudated amortisation and impairment G,083.60 4,332.95 -
Amuortisation charge for the year 211008 494.77 -
Disposals - -
Closing accumulated amortisation and impairment 5,198.649 482772 -
Net carrying amount as al March 31, 2023 2521202 5,185.26 751.18
Fpr the year ended March 31, 2024
Opening gross carrying amount 3341071 11,012.98 76118
Addilions - - 383.72
Translers - -
Disposals - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 33,410.71 11,012.98 4,144.90
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Opening accumulated amortisation and impairment 8,198.69 4,827.72 -
Amortisation charge for the year 2,192.09 537.78 -
Disposals - - -
Closing accumulated amortisation and impairment 10,390.78 5,365.50 -
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 23,018.93 5.647.48 1,144,90

MNote:
{a) The above Intangible Asset are pledged as security with lenders.

{b} The company has included flat at Beisar, Thane districl aggregating fo Rs. 0.91 million in gross block of Toll collection rights.

(c} Intangible Assets under Development ageing

¥ pillions

Amount in CWIP for a period of

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Less than 1 year
1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

3372
761,18

761.18

Total Intangible Assets under Development

1,144.80

761,18

d) Intangible assels under development compietion schedule

T Millions

To be completed in

Amount

Less than 1 year
1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

338.02

Total

338.02

&) Al the title deeds of Immovable property are held in the name of ¢

he company

f) No proceedings has been initialed or pending against the company for holding any benami property under ihe Benami Transactions
{Prohibition) Act, 1988. Therefore the disclosure of details of Benami Properly held is not applicable.
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¥ Millions
icul As at As at
Particulars Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Note 5 - Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 577.40 127.84
Cash on hand 0.48 0.18
577.88 128.02
Note 6 - Other financial assets - current
Deposits with original maturity of mare than three months 259.37 -
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 14.45 -
Retention money receivable from NHAI 43.35 43.35
Others 19.02 11.85
Security deposits 3.71 0.43
Claims receivable from NHA{ 39.32 39.32
379.22 94.95
Note 7 - Other Current assets
Advance o vendors 67.87 68.63
Less: Expected Credit Loss (10.86) {8.35)
57.01 60.28

Advance to employees 2,42 2.22
Prepaid Expenses 18.44 2583
Gratiity Advanne 5.46 4.25
Dulies and faxes receivable 3.62 26.57

86.96 117.16
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Note 8 - Share Capital

Particuiars Nos of Shares

Note 8a - Authorised Equity Share Capital

At the beginning of the period 1,00,000
Add : Increase during the period of 10 each
At the end of the period

Note 8b - Issued, subscribed and paid-up equity

share capifal

At the beginning of the period 10,724
Add  Increase during the period of 10 each

Al the end of the pericd

Note 8c - Terms and rights attached to equity shares

¥ Milions
As at As at
Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00
0.11 0.11
0.11 0.11

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as Equity Shares having a Par Value of Rs. 10/, in the event of liguidation of the
company, the holders of equily shares will be entitled o receive remaining assets of the company, afier distribution of afl preferential
amaounts. The distribution will be in propartion to the number of equily shares held by the shareholders.

Note 8d - Reconciliation of nos of Shares

Nos of Shares al the beginning of the period 10,724 10,724

Add ;. Nos of Shares issued during the period - -

Nos of Shares at the end of the period 10,724 10,724

Note 8e - Shares held by the holding company or their

subsidiariesfassociates

Reliance Infrasiructure Limited (Holding Company) & ite nominces 10,724 10,724

Jiangsu Provincial Transportation Engineering Group Co,Ltd - -

Note 8f - Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Reliance Infrastructure Limited (Hoiding Company) & its nominees

Nos of Shares 10,724 10,724

% of holding 100% 100%

Jiangsu Provincial Transportation Engineering Group Co,Lid

Nos of Shares . -

% of holding 0% 0%

Note 8g - Details of Shares Pledged ! safekeep & unpledged by promoters

Particul As at As at
articutars Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023

Pledged Shares 7,935 7.935

Safekeep - -

Unpledged 2,788 2,788

Total 10,723 10,723

Note 8h - Details of Shares held hy promoters

Promoter Name No. Of Shares % of Shares % Change

Reliance infrastructure Limited 10,724 100.00% 0%

Total 10,724
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Note 9 - Sub-ordinated debt {in nature of equity)

¥ Millions

Particul As at As at

aricuiars Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Note 9a - Sub-ordinated debt {in nature of equity}
At the beginning of the period 16,785.11 10,785.11
Increase / (decrease) during the period - -
At the end of the period ' 10,785.11 10,785.11
Note Sa{i) - Sub-ordinated debt infused by holidng company
Reliance Infrastructure Limited (Hoiding Company) 10,785.11 10,785.11

Terms and rights attached to Sub-ordinated debis infused by holding company.
i} Suboidinated debt is the part of Equity from the promoters of the company for the project, which is unsecured

and interest free as per Common Loan Agreement with the lenders:
if) No repayment/redemption/finterest servicing aliowed during the moratorium period of the long term project

Note 9b- Other Equity - Reserves & Surplus

7 Miltions
Particui As at As at
aricufars Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Corporate Guarantee {in nature of equity) 105.10 105.10
Retained Earnings 6,707.17 {4,143.08)
6,602.07 {4,037.86)
Other Equity
Note 9(b)(i} - Corporate Guarantee (in nature of equity)
At the beginning of the period 105.10 105,10
Increase / (decrease) during the period - -
Af the end of the period 105.10 105.10
Note 9(b){ii) - Retained Earnings
Al the beginning of the period : (4,143.06) {1,787.05)
Net Loss for the period {2,563.39) (2,360.27)

Hems of other comprehensive income recognised
directly in retained earnings
- Remeasuremens of post-employements (0.72} 4.26
obligations (net of tax) -

At the end of the period {6,707.17) {(4,143.06)
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Hote 10 {a) - Borrowings - Nen currem 2 thilhone
" FL3: 911 AS AT
Particulars Biar 31,2024 Mar 31, 2023

Secured
Torm loans
from banks
Term Loan fram lanks 4,282.26 4.893.32

From financial institutions
Term Loan from Financial
institution 1,642.53 i,735.54

Total 5,924.7% 6,626,386

1} Secured Term Loan from Banks & Financial Institutions are secired as under:

{i} Morigage, by way of first charge on afl the company’s immovatile properties, fangible movable properios
inchiding plant and mackinery, machinety spares, {ools and accessories, vehicles and all olher movabla
agsets, both present and fulire, save and excepd the projec assels.

(i) A first charge over aft the accounts of the company’s including 1he escrow accaunts and sub accoumls {oF
any account in subsitulion thereof} thal may be opened in accordance with this agreement, escrow
agreoment and the supplementary escrow agresmend,

(iil) A fiest charge an all the company's Blangible assets but not kmited 1o goodwill, rights, undertaking and
uncafted capitad present and fulure excepl the project assets.

{iv} A fiest chargefassigniment by way of B securily in right, title, inderests, bonefits, claims and domands of
the company in preject documemts, under all Govenxnent approvals, any elter of credit, guarantees
including conlracier guarantees and liguidated damages and performance bond provided by any party © the
Project Dociements.

(v} Adirst chargefassigronem by way of the security in dght, K, interests, benefits, claims and demands of
the company under aff Insurance conlracts.

{vi} Pledged by the promolers is 100% {10,723 no. of shares) of the fully paid up capilal of he compamy o
the consortiom Lenders.

Wi} The interest is payable monthly as por the applicatile Merost rates.

Wi} Filing of dhe quartery setaims o stateatients of current assels 1s not applicable 1o the company.

ix) None of e Banks { Fli £ other lendors has declared Wie company as witful gefauRer in accordance will
guidelines on willu! dedaullers issued by RBE Hence willul defauller disclosure is pot applicable

¥] Mo ehorges of salistaction is pending 1o De regisha wl wills ROC Deyond B slatulory pertod.

2} The hoiding Company has provitad Cerporate Guarantes for company in form and manner satisfaciory to
Ihe lenders a5 per Common Loan Agrecment,

3) The applicable inlerest rale for Rupee lerm Loan varies from 10,25 % (o 12.45% p.a

4) Due to the outlieeak of COVIE-19, the Reserve Bank of India has granted reliel 1o horrowers by way of
maratorien of interest and principat instalments faing due lo Wadian banks and finandial institutions il Aug
2020, The company svailed the moratoduam and notified al consortium lenders,

5) The carnying amounts of assets pledged as securily for curent and non.current horrowings are
considered in Note no, 35

) Maturity Prafile of Secured loan from others { Principal undiscounied) is as undern ¥ Millions

Loan fram

Parliculars Lc:n from Financial
anks e

Instilutions
FY 2024.25 68718 +16.06
FY 2025.26 $21.03 152.56
FY 2026.27 106533 199.06
Y 202728 1.143 .86 409,06
FY 2028.29 onwards 1.164.12 61 .85
Total 4,969.45 1,767.58




Ga) The company has not deiayed in the repayment of principal & Inferest to the Banks & financias institution
due lo wiich the tenders have ctassified the account as Non Perlorming Assets (MPA) However, the

classification as Cureent & Non Current is based on the contracted repayment schedule.
Bh) The company has delayed in the repayrmant of principal & nteres! to the Banks & financial institution
which were paid on ar helore balance sheel dale. The lender wise delails is as below

7 Miilisng
Borrowlngs Interest
Amount { Period Amount Pertod
Name of Londor
{ibaximu {Maxmum

m days) days}
ARG BANR 97.10¢ 4545 1400 455
IDFC BANK 86.07 455 133.43 455
State Bank of India 24.33 456 G783 455
HitCL 1.3 458 10675 455

Ge) The company has not delayed in the repayment of principal & interes! Lo the Banks & financial instilution
which were nol paid on or bofore balance sheet date, The bender wise details is as below

As per confirmation received fram respective lenders, penal interest & adéditional interes! charged by lenders
has been accounted for as on March 37, 2024 by the company.

Azat As at
Particutars Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Mate 40 (bl - Borrowings - Current
Becured
Current Malurities of Long Tenn Dab frefer note 10 fa) (1) & (3)]
Term Loan from Banks 6&7.18 656,15
Tenn Loan from Financiat Institution 115.06 18575
Unzsiocured
{unsecured, repayabie on demand and interest free)
Loan from retated parties (refer note 26} 1,A75.00 755.00
2,271.24 1,596.50
¥ Millions
i As at Asat
Farticulars Mar 34, 2024 War 31, 2023
Note 11 - Trade Payables
Teotal oulstanding dues of Micro & Small Enterprises - -
Total oulstanding dues of credilors other than Micra & Small Erderprises 303.24 377 A1
303.24 377,11
(2} Trade Payables ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2024 2 Millions
Qudstanding for helow periods from date of
transaction
Paritculars L&ss
than 1 12 2-3 Mare than 3
Year Years {Years Years Total
1) MSME -
2) Others 62.77 - 131.85 108.62 303.24
3} Bispuled Dues - MSME - - - - -
4} Disputed Bues - Cthers - - - -
5) Unbilled Pues - - Z -
Total 62.77 - 131.85 108.62 303.24
As at March 31, 2023 Z Millions
Quistanding for below periods from date of
transaction
Partlculars
Less than {1-2 2-3 More than 3
1 Year Years  {Years Years Totat
1} MSME - . - - -
2} Others 218.82 17.02 14.27 38.01 287.92
3) Disputed Dues - MSME . - - - -
4) Disputed Dues - Qlhers - - - - -
5) Unbilled Dues 59.18 - - - 8S.19
Total 307.8% 17.02 14.27 38.01 377.11

(b} Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
Disclosure of payable to vendors as detined under lhe “Micro, Small and Medium Bnterprise Development
Acl, 2006" is based on the information available with the Company regarding the stalus of registration of
such vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation received from them on requests made by Ihe
company. There are no overdue principal amountsfinlerest payable amounts for detayed paymenls 1o such
vendors al the Balance Sheet date. There are no delays in payment mede to such suppliers during the year
of far any earlier years and accordingly there is ne interest paid or cutstanding inerest in this regard in
respect of payments made during lhe year or brought forward from previous years,




2 Milons

As af As al
Particulars Mar 3%, 2024  Mar 31, 2023
Mote 12 (a) - Cther financlal liabHities - current
MHAL Premium Payabte {incl. Interest 5805.69 4,475.45
Interest Aceured and dise 8.11 43673
Credilors {ar Capital expendilure 325.86 119.47
Employes henfits payable 7.26 14.16
Retention money payabic 208,88 20142
6,366.81 5,247.28
Foot Note;
* Retention Payabies ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2024 2 hillions
Outstanding for below pericds from date of
Parliculars transaction Total
Less than | 1-2 23 More than 3
1 Year Years Years Years
1) Retention money payable 76.15 127.38 203.53
Total 76.15 - - 127.38 203.53
As al March 31, 2023 ¥ Millions
CQutstanding for below periods from date of
; transaclion
Particutars Less than [1-2 2-3 More than 3 Total
1 Year Years  |Years Years
1) Relention money payable 82.24 34.64 15.00 §9.55 201.43
Tota! 8224 34.64 16.00 G9.55 201.43
Note 12 [b) - Other financial flabilitles - Non - current
Hon - Current
MHA] Premivm Fayable 11,657.27 11,742 .07
411,557.27 1174207
Merba 13 {a) - Frovisions - Current
Current
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuily - -
- Leave encashmen! 0.03 0.04
0.03 0.04
Note 13 {b) - Provisions - Non - Current
Provision for employee henetits
- Gratuity . .
- Leave encashment 016 015
Cthers
- Resurdacing expenses 243.23 187.33
243.38 187 .48
Movement in Provisions
Resurfacing expenses
At the beginning of the year 1B7.23 -
Charged / {credited) Lo profit or loss
Provision made during the year 489.81 210.87
Unwinding of discount 22,48 -
Amounl itilised during the year {456.39} {23.54)
At the end of the year 243.23 187.32
Note 14 - Glher current liabilities
Duties and taxes payable 18.91 6,76
18.91 5.78
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# Millions
Particulars Year ended Year ended
Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Note 15 - Revenue
Operating income
- Construction income 383.72 1,051.41
- income from toll collections 4,360.50 4,078.91
4,744.22 5,130.32
Note 16 - Other income
interest income
- On fixed deposits 16.05 -
- Ctlhers 2.03 1.00
£xcess provision for Written back - 2213
Miscellaneous income - 2.93
18.08 26.06
Note 17 - Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses
Subcontracting expenses 122.19 126.38
Maintainence of Roads 929.37 650,30
Electricity expenses 73.60 65.41
Site and other direct expenses 8.53 8.16
1,133.69 850.25
Note 18 - Employee benefits expenses
Sataries wages and bonus 22.36 42.27
Contribution to provident funds and other funds 1.27 2.15
Gratuity 0.38 1.01
Leave encashment 0.17 0.16
Staff weifare expenses 0.54 1.32
24.65 48.91
Note 19 - Finance Costs
interest on loan 885.42 964.85
Interest unwinding on premium deferment 1,637.24 1,616.65
Other finance charges 39011 278.16
2,912.76 2,859.66
Note 20 - Other expenses
Rent 0.27 1.12
Rates & taxes 0.68 8.57
Insurance 53.15 46.98
Legal and Professional Charges 66.38 55.86
Auditors Remuneration
- Audit Fees 0.28 0.30
Travelling and Conveyance 0.25 0.46
Expected Credif Loss 2.51 2.07
Other miscellaneous expenses 2.29 4.91
125.80 120.27
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Neote 21 - Fair value measurements
Financial Instruments by category
Signficance of financial instruments

¥ Millions
] As at As at
Particulars Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Financial assets
At amortised Cost
Others 19.02 11.85
Retention Money receivable from NHAI 43,35 43.35
Cash and Cash equivalent 577.88 128.02
Security Deposits 3.71 0.43
Claims receivable from NHAI 39.32 39.32
Total financial assets 697.74 222.97
Financial labilities
At amortised Cost
Borrowings 8,202.03 8,225.77
Trade Payables 303.24 37711
Retention money payable 209.89 201.43
NHAI Premium Payabie 17,362.96 16,217.56
interest Accured and due 8.11 436.73
Employee Benefits Payable 7.26 14.16
Creditors for capifal expenditure 335.86 119.47
Total financial labilities 26,429.34 2568223
{b) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost g Mitlions
. As at As at
Particulars Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Financial Habhilities
Carrying value of financial Habilities at amortised cost
Floating rate berrowings 6,727.03 747077
Retention money 209.89 201.43
NHAI Premium Payable 17,362.96 16,217 .56
24,299,858 23,889.76
Fair value of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Ficating rate borrowings 6,727.03 747077
Retention money 209.89 201.43
NHA Premium Payable 17,362.96 16,217.56
24,299.88 23,889.76

The carrying value amounts of fixed deposits, interest accrued on deposits, retention money receivable,
insurance claim receivable, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, interest accrued, employee benefits
payable and creditors for capital expenditure approximate their fair value due to their short term nature.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair vaiue, the carrying amounts are egual to the fair

values.




PS Tolf Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 22 - Fair value Hierarchy

2 Millions
- AS At ASat
Particulars Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023

Financial assets

(a) Fair value hierarchy - Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are
disclosed

Financial liabilities

Level 3

Floating Rate Borrowings 6,727.03 747077
Retenticn money payable 209.89 201.43
NHAI Premium Payable 17,3682.96 16,217 656
Total financial Habitities 24,299.88 23 889.76

Recognised fair value measurements
Level 1: Levet 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices,

Level 2. The fair value of financial instruments that are nol traded in an active market {for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of chservable market data and rely as little as
passible an entity-specific estimates. I all significant inputs reguired {o fair value an instrumend are observable, the instrument
is included in fevel 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable markel data, the instrument is included in level 3.
This is the case for borrowings, debentures, Retention money payable and hedging derivative included in level 3

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation technigues used to value financial instrumoents include:

+ the use of quoted market prices or deater quotes for similar instruments

+ the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and principal swap is determined using forward exchange rates at the
balance sheet date

» the fair vaiue of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis,
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Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collaterat obligations
without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to
meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash
management system. {f maintains adequate sources of financing including debt from banks at an optimized cost. The
liguidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the financial liabilities. The average credit period
taken to settle trade payables is about 30 to 60 days, The carrying amounts are assumed to be a reasonable

approximation of fair value. The following table analyses financial liabifities by remaining contractual maturities.
The table below analyses the company's non-derivative financial liabilities and net-setiled derivative financial liabilities

into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
Derivative financial fiabilities are included in the analysis if their contractual maturities are essential for an understanding
of the timing of the cash flows. The amounts disclosed in the table are {he contractuail undiscounted cash flows.

T Millions
As af March 31, 2024 Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total
Nan-derivatives
Bariowings 802.24 5,924.79 8,727.03
Interest on Borrowings 822.51 2,028.34 2,850.85
Trade and cther payables 303.24 - 303.24
Other financial liabllities 6,358.70 11,557.27 17,915.97
Total non-derivatives 8,286.69 19,510.40 27,797.10
As at March 31, 2023 Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 841.80 6.628.86 7.470.76
Interest on Borrowings 1,266.80 2,996 55 4,263.35
Trade and other payables 377N - 377.1
Other financial liabilities 4,810.55 11,742.07 16,552.62
Total non-derivatives 7,296.35 21,367.49 28,663 84
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Note 23 ~ Financial risk management
The company aclivities exposes it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.
This note explaing the source of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity is manage the risk.

Risk Exposure arising Measurement Management
from

Credil risk Cash and cash Aging analysis Diversification of
equivalents, trade Credit ratings bank depaosits,
receivables, financial credit fimits and
assetls measured at {etters of credit

amorised cost.

Market risk — inferest rate Long-term borrowings  Sensitivity analysis  Actively Managed
at variable
Rates
Liguidity risk Borrowings and other Rolling cash flow  Availability of
tiabilities forecasts commilted credit
lines and

borrowing facilities

The company’s risk management is carried out by a project finance team and central treasury team under policies approved by
board of direclors. Company treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risk in close co-operation with the group’s
operaling units. The Management of the company provides written principles for overalt risk management, as well as policies
covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk and credit risk, use of derivative financial instrument and non-derivative

financial instrument, and investments of excess liquidity.

Commodity risk:
Tl company requires for implementation {construction, operation and maintenance) of the projects, such as cement, bitumen,
sleet and other construction materials. For which, the company entered into fixed price contract with the EPC contractor and

O&M Confractor 0 as to manage our exposure 1o price increases in raw materials. Hence, the sensitivity analysis is not
reguired.

Market risk — inferest rate risk

The Bank loans follows floating rates with resets defined under agreements. While interest rate fluctuations carry a risk on
financials, the company earn toli income which is finked to WP thus providing a natural hedge to the interest rate risk.

a) Interest rate risk exposure

Z Milions
Particulars As at As at
Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Variable Rate Borrowings 6,727.03 7.470.77
Fixed Rate Borrowings - -
Total 6,727.03 7.470.77

b) Sensitivity analysis
Profit or loss is sensitive to higherdower interest expense from borrowings as a resuit of changes in interest rates.

Impact on profitioss after tax As at Ag at
P pr Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023

Interest rates (increase) by 100 basis points {56.78} {63.05}
Interest rates decrease by 100 basis points 56.78 63.05




PS8 Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 24 - Capital risk management

The company objectives when managing capital are to

- safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

For the purpose of the company capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium, sub-debts
and all other equily reserves aftributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the company
capital management is to maximize the shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in fight of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue interast free sub-ordinate debt. The company
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The company policy is to
keep optimum gearing ratio. The company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade
payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the company capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that
it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital for year ended
March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capital on the basis of the foliowing gearing ratio:
Net debt including total borrowings (net of cash and cash equivalents)
divided by
Total ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet).

Z Millions
) As at As at
Particulars Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Net debt (a) 7,624.15 8,087.75
Equity {b) 4,183.15 6,747 25
Net debt to equity ratio (a) / (b) 1.82 1.20
T Millions
. Ag at As at
Particulars Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Net debt (a) 7,624.15 8,097.75
Equity (b) 4,183.15 6,747.25
Nebt debt plus Equity (c = a+b) 11,807.30 14,845.00
0.65 0.55

Gearing ratio (a}/ ¢
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Note 25- Concession arrangements - Main features

¥ Millions

Nampe of entily

Description of the arrangemand

Significant terms of the
arrangement

intangible Assets

Gross hook
vafue

Net book value

Financial Asset

PE Toll Road Private Limited

Finanting. design, bullding and
operstion of 137 kilometre long siy
{ane Wl road between Pune and
Satata on Nalional Highway 4

Periati of concession: 2010 - 2034

Remuneciation : Tall
invesimenl grant from concession
grantor . Wi

Infrastructure return at the end of
concession period - Yes

March 31, 2024

45,568.68

March 31, 2024

29,812.30

March 31, 2024

Hif

Re-pricing dates : Yearly

Basis upon which re-pricing or re-
negolialion is determined ; inflation
Premium payable o grantor : Yes

Investment and renewst obligations -

March 31, 2023

45,1084.86

Warch 31, 2023

32,168.46

Mearch 31, 2023
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Note 26 - Related Party Schedule

Ag per Ind AS-24 " Related Party Disclosure” the Company's related parties and trasnsactions with them in the

ordinary course of business are disclosed below :

(A) Holding Company
Reliance Infrastructure Limited

(B) investing Party
Jiangsu Provincial Transportation Engineering Group Co.Ltd (il 14/11/2022)

Key Management Personnel

Madan Pendse - Director

Trina Subimal Das - Director

Prashant Kumar - Director (w.e.f 23/06/2023)

Details of transactlons and closing balance :

F Millions

Particulars March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Transactions during the year :-
Inter-corporate deposit
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 720.00

Balances at the yearend ¢

Inter-corporate deposit
Reliance infrastructure Limited {Current) 1,475.00

Trade payable
Refiance Infrastructure Limited 87.61

Sub-debts (in nature of equity)
Reliance infrastructure Limited 10,785.11

Equity share capital {excluding premium)
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 0.11
Jiangsu Provincial Transpoertation Engineering Group Co.Ltd -

Gurantees issued on hehalf of the company
Reliance infrastructure Limited 6,727.03

{C} Key Management Personnel (KMP) and details of transactions with KMP :
During the year no payment was made to Key Management Personnel ( KMP)

436.00

755.00

87.61

10,785.11

7.807.50
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Note 27 -Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans
2} Defined contribution plan

The following amount recognized as an expense in Statentent of profil and loss on account of providen! fund and olher funds. There are no
other ebligations other than the contribution payable to the respective authorities.

F tillions
As at As gt
Particuiars Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2022
Contribution ta provident fund and other funds 1.27 2.1
Total 1.27 2.15

&) Defined benefit plan
The company Group has a defined benefit plan {Gratuily) for its employees, The gratuily plan is governed by (he Payment of Graluily Act,

1872, Under the Act, employee who has complsted five years of service is entilled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends
on the member's lenglh of service and salary at retirement age. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service geis a
gratity on departre at 15 days satary {last drawn salary) for each completed year of service as per the provision of the Paymend of Gratisity
Acl, 1972 with total ceiling on gratuity of Rs.1,000,000/-. The said gratuily plan is funded.

The loliawing tables summaries the The amounts recognised in e batance shaal and the mavements in the Aet defined henelit abligalion

over the year are as follows;

. s . As at As at
Change in the Present Vaiue of Projected Benefl Cbligation Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Fresent Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the Period 5.53 13.14
kterest cost 2.70 0.74
Currenl service ¢ost 0.6% 0.29
(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer} {2.31) (1.24)
Actuarial (Gains)fl.osses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions 0.p5 0.1t
Actuarial {Gains)Losses on Obligations - Due to Changa in Financial Assumplions .17 {0.59)
Actuariaf {Gains)Losses on Oblipations - Due to Experience (0.03} {3.62)
Present Valuo of Benefit Obligatfon at the End of the Period 8.81 9.53
. As at As ot
Chango in the Falr Vatue of Plan Assets fMar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2025
Fair Value of Plan Assets af the Beginning of the Period 13.78 12.88
Interesl Income 3.01 073
Return on Plan Assels, Excluding Inlerest Income (0.52) Q.16
Fair Value of Plan Assels al lhe End of the Period 14.27 13.78
. ) As af As al
Amount Recognized in the Batance Sheet WMar 3%, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
{Presant Value of Benefil Qbligation at the end ol the Period) {8.81) {9.53)
Fair Valug of Plan Assets al the end of the Peried 13.78 12.89
Funded Status {Suerplus/ (Deficithy 5.46 4.25
Net (Liability{Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet 5.46 4.28
Provisions
Cutrent 5.46 425
Non-current - -

. As at As at
Particulars Mar 31, 2024 IMar 31 2023
Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Cuirent sefvice cost 0.69 0.98
Mel Interest Cost 0.31) 0.01
Expenses Recognised 0.38 1.01
IncomefExpenses) Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obkigation Far the Period eI {4.10)
Return on Plan Assels, Excluding inlerest Income 0.52 {0.15)
Change in Asset Ceiling - -

Amound recognized in GCI 2,72 (4.26)




Major Categories of plan asses as a percentage of total

tnsurer Managed Funds 100% 100%
The table befow shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan based on past
service of the employees as at the valuation date:
Maturity Analysis of Project Benefit Obligation
Within the nesd 12 months (next annual reporting period) 1.41 1.77
Betweaen 2 and 5 years 4.63 5.3
fBetween 6 and 10 years 4.4% 381
Beyond 10 years 1.5% 1.98
Total expected payments 12,11 12.87
The average duration of the defined benefit plan obfigation at the end of the reporting

P 4 years 4 years
period

P As at As at

Particulars Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Starting Period C1-Apr-23 01-Apr-22
{1ate of Reporiing 3 -Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Period of Reporting 12 Months 12 Months
Assumptions
Expecled Relurn an Plan Assets 7.18% 7.31%
Rate of Discounting 7.18% 7.31%
Rate of Salary Increase 8.40% 8.00%

Hate of Employee Turnover

Mortality Rate During Emplayrnent

17.80% p.a. for all

service groups.

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)

22.00% poa. for &l
SEIVice groups.
Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)

Urban Urban
Mortality Rate After Employment N.A
A quantilative analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
Particuiars As at As at
Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Assumplions -Discount rate
Sensitivity {evel 108 bp 100 bp
impact on defined benefit obligation + in % increase -3.67% -3.38%
impact on defined benefil olligation - in % decrease 396% 3.64%
Assumplions -Future salary increases
Sensilivity Level 160 bp 100 bp
Impact on defined benefit obligation + in % increase 3.88% 3.68%
Impact on defined benafit ablipation - in % decrease -3.66% -3.39%
Plan Assels Compusilion
Particulars Asat As at
far 31, 2024 Mar 2%, 2023
Non Quoted
“Insurer Managed Funds 14.27 13.78
14.27 13,78
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Note 28 - Earnings per share

¥ Millons
. Yoar ¢nded Year endaed
Farticulars Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Profit f Loss atinbolable 10 equity shareholders {Rs Mithansh (A} {2,563.39) {2.360.27)
Waighted pverage number of equity shares lor bazic and dited aarmings per shata 10,724 10.724
)
Earnings / {Loss} per share {Basic and diluted) {Rupoes) (A8} (2,29,013.23) {720,007 25}
Naminal valie of equily shares {Rupees) 10.00 10.00
Note 29 - Contingert liablilies ¥ Millions
i AsEE As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1) Claims against the company not acknowledge as debls and under ffigation
- Income Tax Claims 0,54 175.38

2} The indirect tax awthoriies dwring an investigation in Financial Year 2016 stated thal the Company was not eligible o avail
CENVAT credit &s there was no oulput service liable 1o tax. The depariment issued an order in April 2016 demanding inlerest on the
CENVAT credit avatled (or period October 2010 o March 2012 and penally on account of wilful suppression of facts. The Company
has appeated against such order belore the Tax Appeliate Trbunal, The tibunal has set aside the said adjudication order againgt
which depadment has now gone in appeal before the Hon'ble High Court of Mumbai,

2} FASTag Penally | -The company has been collecling penally from the users (or uging FASTag lanes without valid FASTag, dhe
same has heen considered as part of income of the company since he company is of the view Lhat the same is no! payable 1o NHA)
notwithstanding the demands from NiHAL The aggregate amount of penally collected and appropriated under income for March 31,
2024 is Rs. 42 .50 Mn {March 21, 2023 Rs.71.70 Mn} and till March 2024 is Rs 226.64 Mn,

4) Independent Engineers / NHA] have issued various communication lo the company purporiedly lowards defaull in meeting the
maintenance cbligation, pending punch kst wark / De scope of the company and consequential penalty on account of the same, The
company has cordested the same and hence no effect of the same is considered necessary in the finandal stalements,

5) There are numerous inlerpretative issues refaling 1o the Supreme Courl {SC) judgement dated February 28th, 2018 on Provident
Fund {FF} on the inclusion of allowances for the purpoese of PR contribulion as well as its applicabitity of effective date, The Campany
has evaluating and lhere is no malefial impact on ifs financial statement. The Company, in respect of the above mentioned
Centingent Liabilities has assessed thal it is only pessible but not probable thal oulflow of economic resources will be required.

Mote 2&a - Note on Arbitration

The Company has invoked arbilration apainst NHAI for extended stay claims, {he Prolongation cost claims, CiL and other legitimate
claims under CA for an amount of Rs. 25610 million which atso includes the claim of the EPC Conleactor amounting to Rs, 1819724
Tettion.

NHAL atso submilled Hs counter claims for an amount of Rs. 29720 Mifions against the Company.

The Arbitration proceedings are in progress. Mext date of hearing {i) 13.07.2024 (i} 15.07.2024 (i} 16.07.2024 for Cross
Examination of PSTR's witnesses

The Independent EngineerNHAL have issued various communication (o the company purportediy lowards default in meeting the
maintenance obligation. pending punch list work / De scope of Ihe company and conseguential penalty on accoun, of the same. The
comparty has conlested 1he same and hence no eflect of the same is considered necessary in the financial stalements,

NHA! issued a suspension nolice an Fabyuary 14, 2023 initially and the same was withheld vide ils email dated February 15, 2023,
Thereafier vide leller daled February 17, 2023 the same was wilhdrawn. However apprehending suspension, the company
approached DHC under section ¥ of the Arbitration and Conclliation Acl. 1996 and obtained stalus quo order. As the Arbitral Tribiens!
was abready constituled, the said maller was dismissed by DHC,

On 25.05.2025 NHAI issued a leller of suspension of the Concessionaire’s rights as per adicle 36.1, 36.2 of CA PSTR filed new
pettions under Seclion-17 on 27.05.2023 (o stay the Notice of suspension and (he maller was heard on 30.05.2023. AT passed
interim order staying the Suspension nolice daled 25.05.2023.

Then Seclion 17 Argument was compleled on 18.11.2023, and (he Order was passed on 07.03.2024 subject 1o the following
conditions:

a, The claimant shall deposil a sum of Rs. 35 Cr wilh the respondent towards the alleged arrears of Fremium within 120 days from
the date of this order.

b. The claimant shall henceforth continue o make the monihly payments (owards premium {0 the NHAL far an amount of Rs. 14 57
Ct per month G the pendency of the Present proceedings. The daimant shall direct Axis bark to remit the said amount Trom Lhe
Eserow accouni lo the respondent on or before the 10th calendar day of each succeeding month

¢. The claimant shall faithiully conlinue to carry oul the mainlenance work of the Project Highway as per the stipulations in the CA
under the intimation 1o the tE and complelion of overlay works by June 2024




Note 30 Capitai Commitments and other commitments £ Millions

. Asat Asaf
Particulars Wiarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Estimated value of capilal contract remaining
1o b executed for construction of 1ol road 338,02 1.300.32

338.02 1,399.32

Note 31 - Segment Reporting

The Company is engaged in "Road Infrastiuciuie Projects” which in the context of nd AS 108 "Operating Segment” is considered as
lhe only segment. The Company's activilies are restricled within India and hence, no separale geographical segmenl disclosure is
considered necessary.

HNote 32- Events after reporting period
There are no subsequent even! after the reporting year which required adjustments to the Financial Statements.

Note 33 Foreign currency Exposure
The Company does not have any exposure in the loreign Currency.
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Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 34 : Assets pledged as security

The carrying amounls of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

2 Millions

Particulars Note  March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current
Financial assets
First charge
Cash and cash equivalents 5a 577.88 128.02
Other Financiat Assets 5k 379.22 94,95
Non-financial assets
First charge
Other Current Assets 7 86.96 117.15
Tofat current assets pledged as security 1.044.06 340.12
Non-current
First charge
intangible Asset 4 28,667.41% 31,397 28
Other non current assets G - -
Total non-current assets pledged as security 28,667.41 31,397.28
Total assets pledged as security 29,741.47 31,737.40
Note 35 - Auditor Remunerafion
g Millions
- As at As at
Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Audit Fees 0.28 0.30
Total 0.28 0.30
Note 36 : Disclosure pursuant to para 44 A to 44 E of Ind AS 7 -Cash flow Statements
7 Millions
. Year ended Year ended
Long term Borrowings Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Opening Balance 7470.76 7,689.88
Availed during the year - -
Add: Interest During Covid converted to Loan . -
Changes in Fair Value
- Impact of Effective Rate of Interest 9.44 .20
Less | Repayment During the year 753.18 228.31
Add : Other adjustment - -
Closing Balance 6,727.03 7,470.76
. Year ended Year ended
Short term Borrowings Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2003
Cpening Balance 755,00 318.00
Add : Availed during the year 720.00 436.00
Less : Repaid During the year - -
Closing Balance 1,475.00 755,00
Interest Expenses Year ended Year ended
P Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Opening Balance 436.73 539.86
Interest Charge as per Statement Profit & Loss /
intangible asset under development 2,912.76 2,859.66
Changes in Fair Value
- Impact of Effective Rate of Interest (9.44) {9.20)
- Unwinding of Riscount on NHAI premium (1,637.24) {1,616.65)
- Other (380.67) (269.77)
Interest Converted to Loan - -
Interest paid 1o Lenders {1,314.03) {1,067.17}
Closing Balance 8.11 438.73
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Note 37 Ratio Analysls

Farticutars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

% vatiance

[Reason for Variance

1} Current ratio (a/ly)
Current Assels {(a)

Current Liabitity (b}

2y Debt Equily ratio (c/d)
Oehil {&)
Equity {d}

3} Debt Service Coverage ratio ( eff)

Interest on Term Loan (i}
Principal Repayment (i)

4] Return on Equity ratio {gfh)
Frofil aller Tax (g)
Average Shareholder's Equily {1t

§) Trade Payable Turnover satio {ifj)
Wet Credit Purchase (i)
AverageTrade Payable (j)

G} Net Capital Turnover ratlo {§iF}
Het Sales (k)

Current Assels (i}

Current Liatililies (i)

Working Capital {i} = {i-it}

7) Het Profit ratio (mfn)

rofit after Tax (m)

Nel Sales {n}

8) Return on Cagital Emploved {ofp)
Earnings before Inferest & Taxes (o)
Ned Worth {i)

Tatal Gk (i}
Total Capttal Employad {p) = {i+ii}

9) Return on Investmont
10 Inventory Turnover Ratlo

11) Trade Receivable Turncver Ratio

Earnings befare inlerest Tax & Depreciation {z)

Total Interest & Principal Repayment {f} = {i+ii}

4.13
1,044.06
5,163,989

1.96
8,202,03
4,183.15

1.49
3,079.24
1,314.03

753.18
2,067.21

{0.47)
{2,563.38)
5,465.20

.70
1,2569.48
340,18

(0.67)
4,744.22
1,044.06
8,163.99

{7,119.43)

(0.54)
{2,563.39)
4,744,227

0.03
349.37
4,183.15
8,202.03
12,385,18

NA
NA

NA

0.05
34012

B,385.19

1.2
B225.77
6,747.26

240
3,108.1G
1,067.17,

228.31
1,285.48

{0.30)
(2.260.27)
7,925.26

240
97052
404.32

{0.85)
5,130.32
340.12)
6,385.19
(6.045.07)

{0.46)
{2.360.27)
5,130.32
0.02
469.40)
6,747.25

8,225.77
14,873.03

WA
WA

A

140.08;

60,83

(37.97)

5604

54,20

{21.49)

17.44

(15.42)

Ratio moreased due @ increase in Casn &
Cash Equivalenis, Fixed Deposits and
MHAE Fremium  Payable. Increase in
current sssets is mainly due lo increase
Cash balance & NHA! Prentium payable

Ratic declined due lo increase in loss on
account of capitalisaiton during the year .

Ratio though declined compared 1o last
year bul interesl payment and grincipat
repayment is serviced an lime during the
year. Furiher during the year revenue
increased compared 10 last year

Return on Equity is negalive mainly
because company s ineurring losses.

Ratio increased mainly due lo increase in
credil purchases as compared (o tas! year

Ralia is negative as current kabililies
exceaded current assels

Profit alter lax declined in current year
dug to increase in Toll Operation and
Wainlenace expenses

Ratio is flal duc on account of increase in
revenue but toll amd operation cost is also
increased as compared fo previous year.
However the networlh has reduced on
account of capitalisation of asset during
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HNole 38 Other Statutory Information

i} The company has no transactions with struck off companies under section 248 of the Companics Acl, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Acl, 1956

it The Company have not advanced or ioaned or invested funds o any other personds) of entity(ies), including foreign enlities {(Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Inlermediary shail:

{a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in ather persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
ity Provide any guaraniee, securily or the like 1o or on behalf of the Ultimale Beneficiaries:

) the Company have no! received any fund from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities {Funding Parly) wilh the underslanding (whether
recorded in writing or othenwise) that the Company shaill:

{a) Directly or tndireclly fend or invest in olher persons ¢f entilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on hehalf of the Funding Parly {Ulimale
Beneficiaries) or

{b} Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the LHiimale Beneficiaries.

iv} The Company does no! have any such iransaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the yaar in the lax assessments under lhe income-tax Acl, 19617,

Hote 39 Details of Crypto currency or virtual currency
Company has not traded or invested in Cryplo currency or Vidual Currency during the financial year.

As per our atlached report of even dale
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